
 

Development Review Committee Minutes         06-20-2012          Page 1 of 5 

 

AdoptedAdoptedAdoptedAdopted Minutes Minutes Minutes Minutes    
Spanish Spanish Spanish Spanish Fork Fork Fork Fork City Development Review CommitteeCity Development Review CommitteeCity Development Review CommitteeCity Development Review Committee    

June 20, 2012June 20, 2012June 20, 2012June 20, 2012 
 
Staff Members Present:Staff Members Present:Staff Members Present:Staff Members Present:  Chris Thompson, Public Works Director; Dave Oyler, City 
Manager; Junior Baker, City Attorney; Shelley Hendrickson, Planning Secretary; Kelly 
Peterson; Electric Superintendent; Jered Johnson, Engineer Supervisor;  Shawn Beecher, 
GIS Specialist; Bart Morrill, Parks and Recreation Supervisor; Dave Anderson, Community 
Development Director. 
  
Citizens Present:Citizens Present:Citizens Present:Citizens Present:  Robert Wyman, John Chase, Andrew Goodwin, Brady Jex, Brian 
Gabler, Lew Bankhead. 
    
Mr. Thompson called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 
 
 
MINUTESMINUTESMINUTESMINUTES 
 
Mr. Baker moved moved moved moved to approveapproveapproveapprove the minutes of June 13, 2012.  Mr. Peterson secondedsecondedsecondedseconded and 
the motion passedpassedpassedpassed all in favor. 
    
    
FINAL PLATSFINAL PLATSFINAL PLATSFINAL PLATS    
 
White Rail Plats A & BWhite Rail Plats A & BWhite Rail Plats A & BWhite Rail Plats A & B 
Applicant:  Lewis Bankhead 
General Plan:  High Density Residential  
Zoning:  R-1-6 
Location:  approximately 800 North State Road 51  
    
Mr. Johnson stated that the plats would need to be constructed concurrently.  He 
explained that they would need to add an air vac to the pressurized irrigation main and 
then a legal description added to final Plat B. 
 
Mr. Baker momomomoved ved ved ved to approveapproveapproveapprove the Final Plats for White Rail A & B with the following 
conditions: 
 
Conditions:Conditions:Conditions:Conditions:    
 

1. That both plats be constructed simultaneously. 
2. That an air vac be added to the pressurized irrigation at the direction of the 

Engineering Department. 
3. That they meet the Construction Standards of the City. 
4. That the applicant provides an easement for a temporary storm drain basin on the 

south end of Plat B.  
 
Mr. Peterson secondedsecondedsecondedseconded and the motion passed passed passed passed all in favor. 
    
 



 

Development Review Committee Minutes         06-20-2012          Page 2 of 5 

 

SITE PLANSSITE PLANSSITE PLANSSITE PLANS    
 
CR Flooring CR Flooring CR Flooring CR Flooring –––– Phase 3 Phase 3 Phase 3 Phase 3 
Applicant:  Robert Wyman 
General Plan:  Light Industrial 
Zoning:  Industrial 1 
Location:  approximately 3300 North Main Street  
 
Discussion was held regarding the drive approach, the type of trees that would be planted 
and a six foot privacy fence.  
 
Mr. Peterson told the applicant to make sure that when he plants the shrubs and trees to 
read the clearances on the utility boxes to ensure that he maintains the proper clearance. 
 
Mr. Anderson stated that the applicant would need to add to the plans the caliper of trees 
and what type of fencing would be constructed. 
  
Discussion was held regarding on-site parking and it was determined that a Site Plan 
would not be needed for additional parking. 
 
Mr. Thompson stated that the applicant would probably want LEI to lay out a parking lot 
as the City has parking lot standards that need to be followed. 
 
Mr. Anderson movedmovedmovedmoved to approveapproveapproveapprove the CR Flooring Phase Three Site Plan subject to the 
following condition: 
 
ConditionConditionConditionCondition    
 

1. That the applicant adds the notes on the Site Plan for the caliper of trees and what 
type of fencing.  

 
Mr. Baker secondedsecondedsecondedseconded and the motion passedpassedpassedpassed all in favor. 
 
 
ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTZONING TEXT AMENDMENTZONING TEXT AMENDMENTZONING TEXT AMENDMENT    
 
Brady JexBrady JexBrady JexBrady Jex    
Applicant:  Brady Jex 
General Plan:  City-wide 
Zoning:  Commercial Downtown 
Location:  City-wide 
 
Mr. Anderson asked the applicant, Brady Jex, to describe what it was that he wanted to 
do relative to the commercial use at Rocky’s Tires. 
 
Mr. Jex explained that Rocky had a mechanic shop and two large bays directly behind his 
new oil bay.  He further explained that he would like to lease the shop and bays from 
Rocky in order to run a retail location for the sale of motorcycles and ATV’s.  He said that 



 

Development Review Committee Minutes         06-20-2012          Page 3 of 5 

 

apparently the wording in the ordinance needs to be changed in order for him to retail 
motorcycles there. 
 
Mr. Baker explained that when you talk about a text amendment you are talking about the 
entire zone and that this parcel was just one little piece of a large zone.  He further 
explained that the Commercial Downtown zone does not have an off-street parking 
requirement.  He stated that he was concerned about new and used automobile sales and 
how to address parking.  He explained that he felt the Commercial Downtown zone was a 
walking downtown zone and was concerned about having a repair shop anywhere in the 
Commercial Downtown zone.  He stated that he felt it was noisy and not compatible with 
some of the neighboring uses.   
 
Mr. Jex said that Rocky currently has a repair service there.  Mr. Baker stated that he 
probably was not supposed to be.  Mr. Anderson said that they had ironed things out with 
Rocky a couple of years ago relative to the repair service and that it is a legal non-
conforming use.  
 
Mr. Baker explained that if there was a legal non-conforming use at that location than 
whether it was Rocky or someone else the use could still be there as long as there had not 
been an interruption in use; but stated again that he had concerns with parking.   
 
Mr. Anderson explained that he felt the best way to handle what the applicant wanted to 
do at this location was what they had proposed with the text amendment.  The only other 
option being to change the zone of the property. 
 
Mr. Baker asked if the zone could be changed to Commercial 2.  Mr. Anderson explained 
that the City could but going back to what the City had worked through with Rocky, a 
couple of years ago, the City had discussed the option of changing the zoning to 
Commercial 2 then but decided for a couple of reasons that it was best to keep the 
Commercial Downtown zoning in place.  The Commercial Downtown zone was amended, 
at that time, to accommodate some of the things that Rocky wanted to do. 
 
Mr. Baker said that he couldn’t support this proposal if it is for repair services but if it is 
for the retail sale of off-road vehicles and motorcycles he did not feel that there would be 
a parking issue. 
 
Mr. Oyler asked why you could not sell motorcycles there, today. 
 
Mr. Anderson said that if it was for the retail sale of motorcycles, and only motorcycles it 
is not permitted. 
 
Mr. Oyler asked if the motorcycles were sold from the inside of the building, in a 
showroom, why could you not do that now? 
 
Discussion was held regarding the outside display of merchandise. 
 
Mr. Baker said that the Commercial Downtown zone does not allow for storage but that 
the applicant could bring things out for display during operating hours. 
 



 

Development Review Committee Minutes         06-20-2012          Page 4 of 5 

 

Mr. Oyler said that it was not any different than what Rocky Giles was already doing with 
the display of his tires. 
 
Mr. Baker asked the question if the zone needed to be amended then. 
 
Mr. Anderson asked about the repair side of the business.  Mr. Baker said that he felt the 
ATV repair went along with the grandfathered repair use.  That he did not see them any 
different.  Mr. Anderson disagreed with Mr. Baker. 
 
Mr. Oyler explained that he felt as long as the showroom did not end up being on the 
sidewalk they could display merchandise just like Rocky was doing with his tire displays. 
 
Mr. Anderson said that if the DRC wanted to argue that what is proposed is strictly a 
retail use then there was not a need for a text amendment.  
 
Mr. Anderson read the permitted use language from section 15.3.16.080 of the Spanish 
Fork City Municipal Code with regard to new and used automobile, motorcycle, boat, 
truck, and recreational vehicle sales and retail facilities, and repair services associated 
with such facilities.  He explained that the above language was not listed under the 
Commercial Downtown zone but is specifically listed under the C-2 General Commercial 
zone. 
 
Mr. Oyler explained that he interpreted the language to mean a use such as Sequoia 
Motorsports, in Salem, where you have all boats, 4 wheelers, RV’s etc. permanently 
stationed outside and they never move until they get sold.  He further explained that in 
Spanish Fork City’s Commercial Downtown zone you cannot do that.  Everything goes 
inside, after hours, and the only thing that they can display is their product.  If they start 
having permanent displays outside, they lose their business license. 
 
Mr. Baker explained to the applicant that based on the conversation, that if they follow 
what Mr. Oyler explained that they could get a business license.  That they just would not 
be able to leave their merchandise out over night. 
 
The OThe OThe OThe Oaks, Phase 2, Plat 1aks, Phase 2, Plat 1aks, Phase 2, Plat 1aks, Phase 2, Plat 1 
Applicant:  Tyler Cope 
General Plan:  Low Density Residential  
Zoning:  R-1-6 
Location:  approximately 3300 East Fairway Drive  
    
Mr. Thompson explained the City Trail System alignment relative to the proposal and said 
that it was the City’s policy that whenever a subdivision is built, next to the trail, it is a 
requirement of the subdivision to provide a 10-foot easement for the trail system.   
 
Mr. Anderson said that Mr. Johnson calls out a 16-foot easement in his redlines. 
 
Mr. Johnson explained that there is a non-excavation clause, on the Southeast corner of 
the plat and that is where the 16 foot trail will be located. 
 



 

Development Review Committee Minutes         06-20-2012          Page 5 of 5 

 

Tyler Cope said that there was not a current easement and asked what the owner of the 
parcel would be compensated for the easement.  Mr. Baker said the City would pay fair 
market value. 
 
Mr. Oyler stated that if it was his property that he would ask the City to buy the property 
instead of just an easement. 
 
Discussion was held regarding the vacation of four lots to create two lots and what the 
applicant’s options were relative to a lot line adjustment, vacation of the plat or a plat 
amendment. 
    
Discussion was held regarding a purchase agreement for the property needed for the trail. 
 
Mr. Johnson explained that there was an existing water meter that would need to be 
removed and capped at the main line. 
 
Mr. Peterson explained that there was a transformer pad but not a transformer and that if 
the fees had not been paid, with regard to the power, then the applicant would be 
responsible to pay those fees. 
 
Mr. Oyler movedmovedmovedmoved to approveapproveapproveapprove amending the plat subject to the following conditions: 
 
ConditionsConditionsConditionsConditions 
 

1. That the applicant sign a purchase agreement for the property needed for the trail. 
2. That the applicant remove the water meter and cap it at the main line. 
3. That the applicant pay the power fees. 

 
Mr. Baker secondedsecondedsecondedseconded and the motion passedpassedpassedpassed all in favor. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESSOTHER BUSINESSOTHER BUSINESSOTHER BUSINESS 
 
There was none. 
 
Mr. Baker movedmovedmovedmoved to adjournadjournadjournadjourn.   Mr. Anderson secondedsecondedsecondedseconded and the motion passedpassedpassedpassed all in favor 
at 10:38 a.m. 
 
Adopted:Adopted:Adopted:Adopted:        AAAAugust 22, 2012ugust 22, 2012ugust 22, 2012ugust 22, 2012    
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            ____________________________________                                                            ____________________________________                                                            ____________________________________                                                            ____________________________________                                                            

                                                 Shelley Hendrickson, Planning Secretary 


